
CLIMATE ACTION ADVISORY BOARD 
October 21, 2020 

6:00 PM 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
To participate in this meeting you may video conference in to 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87597367327?pwd=Mk9yV0Uva0hZdnRrb1AxMU5vSk5zUT09 

To call-in by phone dial (877) 853 5257 or (888) 475 4499 and use the Meeting ID 875 9736 7327 and 

Password 415893. Please note that dial-in participants will be muted and will not be able to make 
comments.  

1. Welcome and Zoom reminders (Chair)      [6:00] 
2. Meetings and minutes  (Chair)       [6:05] 

a. Upcoming meeting dates 
i. 6pm on Nov. 18th, Dec. 16th of 2020 

b. Approval of minutes from September 16th    
3. Chair’s Update (Jake)        [6:10] 
4. Director’s Update (Kate)       [6:20] 
5. RMI Accelerator for Building Electrification Policies Update (Alice and Kate) [6:30] 

a. Background: A group is participating in a new effort by RMI to coach and accelerate 
communities in MA to understand options for building electrification policies and 
facilitate development of new bylaws and policies. 

b. Purpose: Share an update on the Accelerator since the last meeting.  
6. Volunteers for liaisons to other groups (Jake)     [6:40] 

a. Background: CAAB has previously discussed the need for liaisons to other town boards 
and committees. With the completion of the climate action and resilience plan it is clear 
that there is an opportunity for CAAB to connect and collaborate with other 
committees. 

b. Purpose: Seek volunteers to attend the next 5-6 meetings of a select list of other 
committees, report back, and determine need for ongoing liaisons.  

7. Planning for 2020-2021 CAAB meetings (Jake)     [7:00] 
a. Background: Now that the climate action and resilience plan as well as Town Meeting 

have wrapped up, CAAB can plan its priorities for future meetings. 
b. Purpose: Discuss priorities for future CAAB meetings and activities. 

8. Public comments         [7:45] 
9. Adjourn          [8:00]

Distribution 
Committee Members:  Jake Swenson (Chair), Brian Foulds, Brian Crounse, Courtney Eaton, John Bolduc, 
Michael McAteer, Pam Hill, Peter Nichol, Ruthy Bennett, Warren Leon 

Town:  Select Board, Jane Hotchkiss, Stephen Crane, Kate Hodges, Melissa Simoncini, Alan Cathcart, 

David Wood, Marcia Rasmussen 

Local Groups: Carbon Free Concord, Mothers Out Front, ConcordCAN, League of Women Voters 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88159581465?pwd=dVVmaUV4SkR4SGVSeE1UeUNCMXVvQT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88159581465?pwd=dVVmaUV4SkR4SGVSeE1UeUNCMXVvQT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87597367327?pwd=Mk9yV0Uva0hZdnRrb1AxMU5vSk5zUT09


Meeting Agenda 
Town of Concord 

Climate Action Advisory Board 
 

Meeting and Clerk Schedule 
June 2020 through December 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Time Location Clerk 

June 15, 2020 (Monday) 4:00 PM Zoom John Bolduc 

July 15, 2020 4:00 PM Zoom Michael McAteer 

August, 19, 2020 5:00 PM Zoom Pam Hill 

September 16, 2020 6:00 PM Zoom Warren Leon 

October 21, 2020 6:00 PM Zoom Ruthy Bennett 

November 18, 2020 6:00 PM Zoom Brian Crounse 

December 16, 2020 6:00 PM Zoom Courtney Eaton 

 
 
 

 

 Revised: September 16, 2020 



Town of Concord 
Climate Action Advisory Board 

Meeting Minutes 
September 16, 2020 

 
Pursuant to a notice duly filed with the Town Clerk, a virtual public meeting of the Climate 
Action Advisory Board (CAAB) was held on September 16, 2020 at 6:00 pm via Zoom. 
 
Members present: Brian Foulds (Chair), Brian Crounse, Courtney Eaton, Jake Swenson, John 
Bolduc, Michael McAteer, Pam Hill, Ruthy Bennett, Warren Leon. 
 
Staff: Kate Hanley, Director of Sustainability 
 
Guests: Alice Kaufman, Jane Hotchkiss 
 
Minutes 
Ruthy Bennett moved to approve the August minutes; Warren Leon seconded the motion. The 
Board voted to approve. 
 
Chair’s Report 
The report was brief, because the results of the town meeting will be discussed later in the 
meeting. 
 
Election of New Officers 
It was time to elect officers for the coming year. Brian Foulds does not want to continue as 
Chair for another year. Jake Swenson was nominated to be the new Chair. He was willing to 
accept the position. Various board members spoke favorably about Jake in this role. He was 
unanimously elected. 
 
For Clerk, the board agreed to continue the pattern of a rotating Clerk. 
 
There was discussion of whether it would be desirable to have a Vice Chair. The Board declined 
to select a Vice Chair at this time. Jake Swenson suggested that people should contact him 
before the next meeting if they are interested in being considered for Vice Chair.  
 
It was agreed that Brian Foulds would moderate this meeting and Jake Swenson would begin to 
moderate CAAB meetings in October. 
 
Director’s Update 
UNH Summer Sustainability Fellow, Abigail Ahern completed her fellowship last month and her 
final report is now publicly available on the Town Sustainability website. Abigail did a good job. 
 
Kate Hanley described the various activities that will be taking place during Climate 
Preparedness Week, which is September 23-30. Information is available on the website. 



 
Unfortunately, the Town was notified that it was not awarded funding in this round of state 
MVP Action Grants. The focus of the town proposal was an integrated water resource 
management plan. Competition was stiff: 140 applicants and about 40 selected for awards. 
There will be another grant round in the spring.  
 
Rocky Mountain Institute (RMI) Accelerator 
The last CAAB meeting included discussion of Concord’s participation in this accelerator to 
foster progress on building decarbonization. The Board was given an update on what’s 
happened since then. Alice Kaufman is a lead for the town on the accelerator and she reported 
on meetings of the accelerator participants. She noted: 

 There is no slam dunk approach that will get us where we want to go. There is no 
obvious clear path. 

 RMI legal analysis of the different options was presented to the accelerator participants.  

 Equity will need to be an important consideration in any successful strategy. 

 A logical, relatively easy action would be a local resolution to the state, indicating what 
the town would like. There is a push to get multiple communities to do this. It would be 
non-binding, but if enough towns do it, it could influence the legislature. 

 Zoning is probably the way to most easily make progress within the town. RMI was 
asked to provide a legal response on what is and what is not possible through zoning. 

 Another possibility is a home rule petition, but this would still run into problems raised 
by the Brookline ruling. 

 There is interesting language in the Green Communities Act stating that buildings over 
3000 square feet should limit their impacts in various ways. This could be a hook for 
local action. But because this has never been tried, it could be costly to do and may not 
work. 

 It will most likely make sense to try several pathways, but more legal analysis and advice 
from RMI is needed before deciding how to proceed. 
 

There was some discussion of whether performance targets would work. It is unclear whether 
this would work, because it could be ruled to be an illegal ban on fossil fuel infrastructure. John 
Bolduc noted that some communities are trying to skirt this issue by setting an emissions target 
for a building as a design standard; that could perhaps work. Cambridge is trying to work 
through a non-zoning ordinance with their legal department.  
 
John also questioned the extent to which the town wants to focus on new construction, since 
the town isn’t expecting there to be that much new construction in the coming years. 
Improving existing buildings is more important. Alice and Michael McAteer both pointed out 
that an initial focus on new construction can be a useful starting point; learning can then be 
applied to existing buildings. 
 
Brian Foulds commented that CSEC’s Your Sustainable Home Now campaign is a valuable 
educational effort that can be built upon. There should be a comparable effort for existing 



commercial buildings. One focus could be to help building owners develop an energy plan, so 
they know what they would want to do if and when some of their existing equipment needs to 
be replaced. The light plant is going to have heat pump coaches. 
 
[Pam Hill and Ruthy Bennett left the meeting] 
 
Letter of Support for State Net Zero Stretch Code 
John Bolduc and Alice Kaufman drafted a letter from CAAB to the legislature to support 
legislation establishing an option for a town Net Zero Stretch Code. John explained that the 
draft letter seeks to support desirable elements in the House and Senate versions of the 
legislation.  
 
Jane Hotchkiss suggested that we bring the letter to the Select Board to see if they would sign 
on to the letter as well. Favorable action by the Select Board could increase the letter’s impact 
with legislators. 
 
Brian Crounse made a motion to approve the letter and forward it to the Select Board and ask 
them to sign on, with any edits they feel are appropriate. Michael McAteer seconded this. The 
Board voted unanimously in favor of the motion.  Brian Foulds suggested that, if the Select 
Board doesn’t approve the letter, we should find out what their concerns are and decide how 
to proceed. CAAB would still have the option to move forward without Select Board 
participation.  
 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory 
Kate Hanley wanted to discuss the process for planning the greenhouse gas inventory. The 
town has a 2020 greenhouse gas reduction goal, which suggests that it might be timely to 
measure the town’s progress. Kate shared a document with information about what 
information is available and considerations about when it makes sense to do an inventory. At 
the moment, only 2019 information is available. She asked whether we should use the 2019 
data to measure our progress by 2020. She pointed out the limitations to some datasets, such 
as vehicle miles travelled (VMT) information, which has not been updated since 2014. Kate was 
not looking for a Board vote or decision but wanted to start the conversation about what to do 
and when.  
 
Warren Leon said the focus should be on action implementation rather than emissions 
measurement and planning. Brian Foulds said we should wait at least until the 2020 data is 
available, even though it will be somewhat anomalous because of the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic. Michael McAteer pointed out that we know where the key opportunities for impact 
are—buildings and transportation. 
 
John Bolduc said it depends upon how big a lift it would be to update the inventory and how 
much of Kate’s time would be required. If it isn’t hard to pull together a few key numbers, it 
should be done. He also raised the issue that there is a question about how CMLP measures 



emissions from the town’s electricity supply. Brian Foulds reminded meeting attendees that 
there is a plan to discuss that topic at an upcoming CAAB meeting. 
 
Kate reported that she has been told that it would only take a few hours to update some of the 
numbers in the inventory. 
 
Courtney Eaton recommended leaning on the side of having updated information for tracking 
purposes. She said that time could be well spent this year getting the processes in place for 
updating the inventory so that it will be easy to make updates on a regular basis in future years. 
 
Brian Foulds argued for finding out when the Metropolitan Area Planning Council is going to 
update their database so that it will be possible to get more current VMT numbers. 
 
Warren Leon suggested going with the 2019 data, because 2020 will be such a weird year. He 
said Kate should make the task time limited—get as much information as she can in perhaps 8 
hours. 
 
Brian Crounse pointed out that, in theory, if you update things more frequently, it should be 
easier. Kate should document the process. 
 
No Board decision was necessary. This discussion was only to get ideas on the table and Kate 
said the discussion had been useful 
 
Town Meeting 
Article 30 passed. Various articles got bumped until next year.  
 
Brian Foulds asked what the Board wants to do for next town meeting.  
 
Michael McAteer commented that there were encouraging discussions at the town meeting, 
including guidance to try to think more holistically about traffic, parking, and other factors in 
the business district.  
 
Brian Foulds reported that town meeting may not take place in April, but perhaps in May and 
June, because COVID is likely to still be going on. 
 
John Bolduc suggested the Board should make a list of what is in the climate action plan that 
requires town meeting action.  
 
Michael suggested CAAB revisit Article 40 and determine what has been learned and what can 
be done. 
 
Brian Foulds asked CAAB members to review the climate action plan and identify things that 
need town action (a quick list). Send ideas to Kate Hanley and to Jake Swenson, as new board 
chair.  



 
John Bolduc asked whether CAAB should develop a workplan for itself, so we know where to 
focus. That would help determine whether working on a town meeting article is the best use of 
the Board’s time. 
 
Jake said there should be a guiding document to keep us focused; for example, it may make 
sense to have people assigned to monitor different town committees 
 
Courtney Eaton said the idea of going to the champions listed in the climate action plan is good 
and could be helpful to them. 
 
There was a question of whether Board members need to know in advance what the ask is 
when the go to a town committee or if it would be good to start with just learning what’s going 
on. 
 
Public Comment 
No members of the public were left. 
 
Adjourn 
There was a motion to adjourn at 7:39 



Climate Action Advisory Board 
Director’s Update 
October 21, 2020 

 
        
 
 
Climate Preparedness Week – Climate Preparedness Week went well with a schedule of virtual events. A 
recording of the virtual presentation “The Climate Reality and How To Talk to Your Kids About It” is 
available on YouTube.  
 
Electric Vehicle Dealer Roundtable – Concord is hosting a virtual roundtable featuring local dealers of 
electric vehicles on October 20th. Attendees will receive a free copy of Electric Car Insider magazine. 
There will be a replay of the event with a live Q&A on October 24th at 10am. Sign-up for both here. 
 
Library Corporation Sustainability Planning – The Library Corporation has hired GreenerU to facilitate a 
sustainability planning process for the library. The planning committee hosted two community input 
sessions during Climate Prep Week and has set-up a temporary website with information on the 
sustainability planning process. You can review and add comments and feedback on the sustainability 
planning site.  
 
PACE – Kate has begun meetings with Town staff about opting into the states’ Property Assessed Clean 
Energy (PACE) program. This is an implementation step in Sustainable Concord for the action to “Provide 
incentives for businesses and homeowners to invest in renewable energy.” The next step is for the 
Select Board to vote to sign a resolution, which will be on an upcoming agenda. 
 
Grants – The Town was notified that we were not awarded funding in this round of META Grants for a 
fleet electrification study, but we will be moving forward to complete the study regardless.  
 

https://concordma.gov/2479/Climate-Preparedness-Week
https://youtu.be/mcbksHsvdfc
https://www.mapsonline.net/concordma/forms/standalone.html.php?id=204527409
https://sites.google.com/greeneru.com/editcfplsustainabilityplanning/home
https://sites.google.com/greeneru.com/editcfplsustainabilityplanning/home
https://kladashboard-clientsourcefiles.s3.amazonaws.com/Concord/Blueprints/Energy+-+RE+Incentives.pdf
https://kladashboard-clientsourcefiles.s3.amazonaws.com/Concord/Blueprints/Energy+-+RE+Incentives.pdf

